IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE WESTERN DISTRICT OF MISSO
WESTERN DIVISION

AILEEN VILLANUEVA, Individually
And on behalf of others similarly situated

Plaintiffs,
vs.

WOODBINE HEALTHCARE LIMITED
PARTNERSHIP,

Serve: Spenserv, Inc.

1000 Walnut, Suite 1400

Kansas City, MO 64106

ROBERT NORCROSS, an individual
Serve: 2900 Kendallwood Parkway
Gladstone, Missouri 64119

DENNY BARNETT, an individual
Serve: 2900 Kendallwood Parkway .-
Gladstone, Missouri 64119

vuvvvuvuvvvvvvvvvvvvvv

Defendants.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

R L »” .. . "o =t

Plaintiffs, for their causes of action ;gz'ainst.defex—ldan'-c \;/-oodbine Health Care Linﬁted
Partnership (*Woodbine™), Robert Norcross (“Norcross™) and Denny Barnett (“Barnett™) state
and allege as follows:

1. This class action is based upon violations of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of
1964, as amended, 42 U.5.C. § 2000¢ et seq., section 1981 of the Civil Rights Act of 1866, 42
U.S.C. § 1981 and the Missouri Hurhan Rights Act, R.5.Mo. § 213.055 et seq. This action is
brought on behalf of plaintiff Villaneuva individually and on behalf of a class of others similarly

situated, as defined more specifically herein, pursuant to Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil

Procedurs,
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2. The members of this class are so numerous as to make it impracticable to bring all
of them before this Court. Upon information and belief, there are approximately 60-80 present
or former employees of defendant Woodbine who are within the class definition.

3. The class representative and all members of the class are all non-white and are of
the same ancestry and national origin, Filipino. The class representative and all members of the
class were recruited by defendant Woodbine to work as registered nurses and are present or
former employees of defendant Woodbine. Thus, -the class representative will fairly and
adequately protect the interests of the class.

4. There are common questions of law and fact presented herein, and the class
representative’s claims are typical of the ¢laims of all class members. _—

cmee 5, The prosecution of separate actions by individual members of‘the class in various

state and/or federal courts would create a risk of inconsistentor varying adjudication with respect

to individual members of the class that would establish incompatible standards of conduct for
defendants with respect to members of the class. *. - T e e - ;

C B, The prosecution of separate actions, :by:*Mdiwidmi--members of the -class would
create a risk of adjudication with respect to individual members of the class which as a practical
matter would be dispositive of interestz of other members of the class not parties to the
adjudication or would substantially impair or impede their ability to protect their interests.

7. Defendants have acted uniformly with respect to all of the class members in that
they have consistently and intentionally discriminated against defendant Woodbine’s employees
who are non-white and of Filipino national origin and ancestry with respect to assignment,

compensation, promotion, firing and classification of employees and in the terms and cenditions




of their employment. Therefore, final declaratory and other ancillary relief would be appropriate

for the class as a whole.

B Questions of law and fact are common to the class and predominate over any
questions affecting individual members only.

9. Plaintiff Aileen Villanueva was born in the Philippines, and is a legal resident of
the United States, custently residing in Kansas City, Missouri. Plaintiff was recruited by

defendant Woodbine and was employed by Woodbine from August 1994 through March 1996,

During the course of her employment with defendant Woodbine, plaintiff suffered discrimination’

based upon her race, ancestry and national origin in numerous ways including but not limited to:

- . - .ar Plaintiff was not given assignments comparable to. caucasian. registered

+nurses-employed by defendant Woodbine even though she was qualified to held a. registered
spurse position.sby virtue of her Commission on Graduates of Foreign Nursing® Sthools

- (“CGFNS™) certification and her Missouri registered nurse license. In fact, prior to coming to

« the Wnited States; plaintiff Villaneuva had already received her diploma, completed the licensing

| ~-mecrequirements of a nurse and was certified as a registered nurse in the Philippinest. -

b. Plaintiff was not compensated at the rate promised to her as a registered
nurse, despite her requests for such compensation and her qualifications.

¢.  Defendant Woodbine’s Director of Nursing, ciefendant Noreross,
threatened to have plaintiff deported if she complained of the conditions of her employment.

d. Plaintiff was denied the same benefits as white, non-Filipino full time
employees. Plaintiff was required to cover her shift before approval for vacation and was forced

to return from her vacation on one occasion in order to work her shift. No such requirement was




applicable to non-white full-time employees. Further, plaintiff was denied paid sick leave
despite defendant Woodbine’s company policy.

10. Defendant Woodbine is a corporation registered to do business in the state of
Missouri. Defendant Woodbine currently is doing business as Woodbine Healthcare Center,
2900 Kendallwood Parkway, Kansas City, Missouri 64119.

ll.  Defendant Robert Norcross (“Norcross™) is an individual who is an agent of and
employed by defendant Woodbine as a Director of Nursing.

12, Defendant Denny Bamett (“Barnett”) is an individual who is an agent of and
employed by defendant Woodbine as an Administrator, acting within the scope of his

employment with defendant Woodbine, with full supervisory authority over plaintiff.

13, . This Couxt has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.8.C.-§ 1331 becayse -«.-

plaintiff has presented faderal claims under Title VI and 42 U.8.C. § 1981, -: ~ | Ry

-

14.  Venue is proper in this district pursuant to 28 U.8.C. § 1391,

#15. »- -The class'of'plaintiffs is defined as all employees of defendant Woodbine who are -4,

_ .nom-white, . whose arncestry and national origin is Filipino, and whg .worked at -defendant

Woodbine’s Gladstone health center.

16.  Plaintiffs were recruited by defendant Woodbine in the Philippines to relocate 1o
the Gladstone area to work as registered nurses in their Gladstone health center. Plaintiffs were
promised that upon obtaining a Missouri registered nurses license they would be employed as a
registered nurse and compensated at the rate of $12.50 per hour.

17.  However, upon obtaining the Missouri registered nurses license, defendants failed

and refused to employ plaintiffs as registered nurses at the rate of $12.50 per hour. Plaintiffs




were required, instead, to perform the duties of a certified nurses assistant at the rate of §7.00 pet
hour solely because of their race, ancestry and national origin,

18.  Plaintiffs were required to arrange for their own shiﬁ coverage prior to obtaining
approval for vacation time. White, non-Filipino nurses were not required to obtain their own
shift coverage. Further, plaintiffs were denied paid sick leave despite defendant Woodbine's
sick leave policy covering full time employees.

19. Plaintiffs were threatened by defendants with deportation if they complained of
their working conditions, In fact, such threats and intimidation by defendants prevented some
plaintiffs from exercising their civil rights.

20. Defendants have -engaged in a pattern and practice of discrimination against
nurses of plaintiff's race,. ancestry and a;ational origin. Defendant Woodbine intentionally . ~:.~
recruits and hires qualified nurses from the-Philippines solely to enable them to pay less for their

services and to intimidate them during the course of their employment.

S COUNT.I. DeTITLTTe T ey e
(Violation of 42 U.S.C. § 1981)
21, Plaintiffs 'incorpo'raté by reference herein paragraph numbers 1 fhrough 20 as

though fully set forth therein.

22. Defendants have intentionally discfiminated against plaintiff Villaneuva and other
members of the plaintiff class because of their race, ancestry and national origin with respect to
the assignment, compensation, classification, firing and other terms and conditions of their
employment, as set forth previously herein.

23, Defendants’ intentional discrimination against plaintiff Villaneuva and members
of the plaintiff class has created a hostile working environment for plaintiffs. The hostile

environment created by defendants’ intentional discrimination has the purpose or effect of

-
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creating an intimidating, hostile and offensive working environment and it has interfered with the
work performance of plaintiff Villaneuva and members of the plaintiffs class. The hostile
environment cteated by defendanmts’ intentional discrimination has seriously affected the
individual employment opportunities of plaintiff Villaneuva and members of the plaintiff class.
The hostile work environment that has been created by defendants’ intentional discriminatory
treatment of plaintiff Villaneuva and members of the plaintiff class is severe and pervasive and
hag altered the class members’ conditions of employment and has created an abusive working
environment.

24.  Because of defendants’ intentional disctimination against plaintiff Villaneuva and

the class members based upon their race, ancestry and national origin, plaintiff Villaneuva and

members of the plaintiff class have suffered actual economic démages and are entitled to an

~e

appropriate award of back pay. : . RS

-

25.  Because of defendants’ intentional discrimination against plaintiff Villaneuva and

the -glass’members based upon.their race; ancestry and national o'rigi»n, plaintiff ‘Villaneuva and-==x_ v

-metnbers of the plaintiff class.are entitled to féinstatement, promoticns or transfers, as the case

may be, and are entitled to back pay, overtime pay, bonuses and fringe benefits, and interest
where appropriate.

26.  Because of defendants’ intentional discrimination against plaintiff Villaneuva and
the class members based upon their race, ancestry and national origin, plaintiff Villaneuva and
members of the class are entitled to front pay to compensate them for lost employment
opportunities.

27. Because of defendants’ intentional discrimination against plaintiff Villaneuva and

the class members based upon their race, ancestry and national origin, plaintiff Villancuva and




members of the class are entitled to other compensatory damages including future pecuniary
losses, past and future emotional pain, suffering, inconvenience, mental anguish, loss of
enjoyment of life and other non-pecuniary losses.

28.  Because of defendants’ intentional disctimination against plaintiff Villaneuva and
the class members based upon their race, ancestry and national origin, plaintiff Villaneuva and
members of the class are entitled to affirmative injunctive relief to remedy the employment
discrimination set forth herein. |

29.  Because defendants’ discriminatory practices have been practiced and performed
with malice or reckless indifference to the federally protected rights of plaintiff Villaneuva and

the class members, plaintiff Villaneuva and members.of the- class are entitled. to an award of
punitive~_§:lamages. ) R 1_
... WHEREFORE, plaintiff Villaneuva and the class- members pray for judgment against

defendants for equitable relief preventing defendants from engaging in a pattern and practice of

» discriminatian against plaintiff and the-class members, on the. basis.of their race, ancestrymand - -

..-~=-national origin; for a judgment for damages for appropriate bwk-p&y;-ﬁont;pay and interest:.for a

judgment for other comnpensatory damages for the intentional discrimination practiced by
defendants which has resulted in pecuniary loss and past and future emotional pain, suffering,
inconvenience, mental anguish and loss of enjoyment of life to plaintiff and the class members;
for a judgment for punitive damages because defendants’ discrimination against plaintiffs has
been practiced and performed with malice or reckless indifference to the federally ~ protected
rights of plaintiff and the class members; for an award of attomey’s fees and expert’s fees
pursuant to 42 U.S,C. § 1988(b) and (c); and for such further and other relief as the Court may

deem appropriate or just and equitable under the circumstances.




i 34k - Plantiff Villanueva will fairly and adequately protect the interest:af-all members .

COUNT II

{Violation of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964,
42 U.S.C. § 2000e, et seq. and the Missouri Human Rights Act)

30.  Plaintiffs incorporate by reference herein paragraphs 1 through 29 as though fully
set forth herein.

31.  Defendant Woodbine is engaged in an industry affecting commerce and employs
more than 15 people.

32.  Plamtiff Villaneuva has exhausted the administrative remedies of Title VII by
ﬁling‘a timely charge with the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, by receiving a
right-to-sue letter from the EEOC, attached as Exhibit 1, and by filing this lawsuit within 90 days

from the date she réceived her right to sue letter. . .

331~ Plaintiff Villaneuva has exhausted the administrative remedies ofthe Missouri

Human Rights Act by filimg a timely charge of discrimination withr the Missouri-CGomumission o .~

Human Rights, by receiving a right-to-sue letter from the MHRC, attached as Exhibit 2, and by

» filing her lawstiit within 9d-days from.the date she received-her right to sue letter. .

of this class.

35.  Defendants have intentionally discriminated against plaintiff Villanueva and all
other members of the plaintiff class because of their race, ancestry and national ;)rigin with
respect to assignment, compensation, promotion, firing and classification of employees and in
the terms and conditions of their employment, as set forth previously herein.

36.  Defendants have engaged in a pattern and practice of discrimination against

plaintiff Villaneuva and other members of the class because of their race, ancestry and national

T
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origin with respect to the assignment, compensation, promotion, firing and classification of
employees and in the terms and conditions of their employment, as set forth previously herein.

| 7. Defendants’ intentional discrimination against plaintiff Villaneuva and other
members of the plaintiff class has created a hostile working environment for plaintiff Villaneuva

and members of the plaintiff class. The hostile environment created by defendants’ intentional

. disctimination has the purpose or effect of creating an intimidating, hostile and offensive

working environment and it interfered with plaintiff Villaneuva’s individual work performance
and the work performance of other members of the plaintiff class. The hostile environment
created by defendants’ intentional discrimination has seriously affected plaintiff Villaneuva’s

empleyment opportunities and the individual eniployment opportunities of other members of the

plaintiff clags. The hostile work enyiromnenig that has been created by defendants’ intentional "

discriminatory treatment of plaintiff Villaneuva-and other members of the plaintiff class is severe

and pérvasive and has altered the class members’ conditions of employment and has created an

-
—_— . ' < me 0. . S

abusive working environment,* L

. 38, . .Because of deéféndant’s intentional discrimination based upon race, ancestry and.

national original, plaintiff Villaneuva and other members of the plaintiff class have suffered
actual economic damages and are entitled to an appropriate award of back pay.

39.  Because of the defendants’ intentional discrimination based upon race, ancestry
and national origin, plaintiff Villaneuva and other members of the plaintiff class are entitled to
reinstatemnent or promotions, as the case may be, and are entitled to back pay, overtime pay,

bonuses and fringe benefits and interest where appropriate,




.

40.  Because of defendants’ intentional discrimination based upon race, ancestry and
national origin, plaintiff Villaneuva and members of the plaintiff class are entitled to front pay to
compensate them for lost employment opportunities.

41.  Because of defendants’ intentional discrimination based upon race, ancestry and
national origin, plaintiff Villaneuva and members of the plaintiff class are entitled to other
compensatory damages including firture pecuniary losses, and past and future emotional pain,
suffering, inconvenience, mental anguish, loss of enjoyment of life and other non-pecuniary
losses.

42.  Because defendants’ discriminatory practices have been practiced and performed

with malice or reckless indifference to the federally protected rights of plaintiffs, plaintiff -

"

Villaneuva and other members of the plaintiff class are entitled to an award of punitive damages.

43.  Because of defendants’ intentional discrimination based upon race, ancestry and

national origin, plaintiff Villaneuva and other members of the plaintiff class are entitled to

affirmative injunctive relief to remedy the employment discrimination set forth.above. -

WHEREFORE, plaintiff Villaneuva and the class members pray for judgment against’

defendants for equitable relief preventing defendant from engaging in a pattern and practice of
discrimination against plaintiff and the class members on the basis of their race, ancestry and
national origin; for a judgment for damages for appropriate back pay, front pay and interest; for a
judgment for other compensatory damages for the intentional discrimination practiced by
defendants which has resulted in pecuniary loss and past and future emotional pain, suffering,
inconvenience, mental anguish and loss of enjoyment of life to plaintiff and the class members;
for a judgment for punitive damages because defendants’ discrimination against plaintiffs has

been practiced and performed with malice or reckless indifference to the federally protected

10




rights of plaintiff and the class members; for an award of attorney’s fees and expert’s fees
pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 2000e-5(k); and for such further and other relief as the court may deem
appropriate or just and equitable under the circumstances.
DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL
Plaintiff hereby demands trial by jury in this action of all issues so triable as a matter of

right and hereby designates Kansas City, Missouri as place of trial.

ANDERSON PLATTS LAW FIRM, L.L.C.

By (o e i Vo lieey

() Denide M. Auderson L #39598

Jennifer H. McCoy ... . .- #37905
305 The Stilwell o -
N o 104 West Ninth Street ™ '_“

Kansas City, Missouri 64105
, (816) 472-1441 . . )
-2 , (816) 472-4114 (FAX)

[
-
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EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY COMMISSION
NOTICE OF RIGHT TO SUE

(/ssued on request)

Ta: From:  Kansas City Area Office EEQC
Aileen Villanueva 400 State Ave., 9th Floor Gateway Tower Il
4508 N. Locust Kansag City, KS 66101

Kansas City, MO 64116

On behalf af a person agprieved whose ideniity iy CONFIDENTIAL
(29 C.F.R. 160{.7(a))

Charge Number EEOC Representative Talephone Number
281970079 JoAnn Jackson 913-551-6847

{ Gee the additional inforrmation attached to this form )

TO THE PERSON AGGRIEVED: This is your NOTICE OF RIGHT TO SUE. It is issuad at your request. If you intend to sue the
respondent(s) named i your charga, YOU MUST DO SO WITHIN NINETY {90) DAYS OF YOUR RECEIPT OF.THIS NOTICE:
OTHERWISE YQUR RIGHT TO SUE IS LOST.

Mare than 180 days have exptred since the filing of this charge. . L s

With the issuance of thls NOTICE OF H[GHT TO SUE, the Commission is terminating its process wﬂh reapect 1]
this charge. v ' " . e

it has been determined that the Commission will continue to invastigate your charge,

ADEA: While Title-VI) and the ADA require EEQC to issue this notice of right.to.sue befare you can bring,.a, ,

f%f'DH 0 08

was filed uritll 80 days aftel' yuu recelved nutlce that EEOC ha¥ completed actﬂ:n on, your charge

2 BN . V% Aaura

I___—_] Becauge EEQC-la. cjosing your case, your lawsuit under the ADEA must: 'he.brought. within 80 days-bf-yolr .
receipt of thlSrn-Oi'IGB -Otherwise, your. Jight to sug is lost. . wioT AN

[_] EEOC is continving its investigation. You will he notified when we have completed action and, if
our notice will include notice of right to sue under the ADEA,

(] EPA: whila Title Vit and the ADA require EEOC to issue this Notice of Right to Sue befare you can bring a lawsuit,
lawsuit you already have the right to sue under the Equal Pay Act (EPA} (You are not required to complain to any
enforcernent agency before bringing an EPA suit in eourt). EPA suits must be brought within 2 years {3 years for
willful violations} of the alleged EPA underpayrnent,

| zertify that this notice was mailad on the date set out below.
On.Behalf of the Comrission

j@,oizmm,u /. 1457 gi{&b_. Aiﬁmﬂ_ﬁ

Date Mafed) 7 Clifford Hill

Enclosures

EXHIBIT

Information Sheet .
Copy of Charge . !

ce: Hespondents

EEQC Form 181-B

Lass than 180 days.havq aexpired since the- fllmg of this charge, but | have determined that-the: Commlssnon»wﬂl be ] -
be unable to cqmp!ete |ts progess withip, 180 ‘days from the filing of the charge. - P

lawsuit you may sue, uqcl'er ;he Aga Dlscnmmatlon in Employment Act (ADEA) apy, timse 60 days after your charge.,_ )

.....
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jeratd P, Gedlman
‘halrpinion

araldirme W. Jolinzon
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tlonds W, Dryas
nf LMstrict

‘anant

o Distrigd

1aan Lew Pentlin
th tHaeriet

unan G, Powell
i Dlatrict

nck D, McCall
th Diprict

I. Elise Craln

‘th Diririet

Awrenee €. George
A Distrier

{ancy J. Reynolds
h Dixtricy
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MISSOURI DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRIAL “FLATIONS

MISSOUnu COMMISSIDN ON HUMAN IuGHTS

Mel Camnhan

Alvla A. Plummer
Gavernoy

X Duvid M
Commistion Eretucive Dlrector ’ \ehem

Agiing Deprrmeq
Blrectar

Mrs. Aileen Villanueva
4508 N. Locust
Kansas City, MQ 64116
NOTICE OF RIGHT TO SUE

RE: Villanueva v, Woodbine Healtheare Center
FE-10/96-27214; 281970079

Dear Mrs. Villanueva:
This is your NOTICE OF RIGHT TQ SUE pursuant to Seetion 213,111 RSMo.

IE, after one hundred eighty days from the (iling of 2 complaint alleging an unlawful discriminawory practice,
the commission has not complered its administrative processiig and the person aggrieved so requests in
writing, the coramission shall issue to the person claiming to be aggrieved a leter indicating their right to
bring a_civil actlon within 90 days of such notlee against the-respondent named in the complaint. Such an
action may be brought in any eircuit court in dny"county in which the unlawful discriminatory practice is
alleged to have occurred, either-before a cirenit or associatecircnit judge. Upon issuance of this notice, the
commission shall terminate all proceedings relating lo the eomplaint, No person may .file or reinstate a
complaint with the comumiission after the issuance of a nofice under this section relating to the same practice
or act. Any action brought in court under this section shall be filed within ninery days from the date of the

commission’s notification letter to the individual but no later than two vears affer the alleged cause
grcurred or its reasonable discovery by the alleped injured party (¢mphasis added).

The above-tefarenced complaint was filed ‘on October 22, 1996; thus mare than 180 days have elapsed since

the filing and: the Missouri Commission on Human Rights has-not:completed its. administrative processing. . o

Further, - as you -have duly requested in writing, - you “are heteby notified of your right to sue the
Respondent(s)- named in. your com_glamt in state circuit court,. THIS MUST BE DONE WTTHIN %0
DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE OR YOUR RIGHT TO SUE IS LOST.

You are also notified that the Executive Director is hereby administratively closmg this case and terminating
all MCHR proceedings relating to it. Ne person may file or reinstate a complaint after the issuance of
ootice of right to sue.

On behalf of the Commugsion:

Gl

A& 1)

Alvin A. Plummer , Date
'Q"(FExecutwc Director
CERTIFIED MAIL
c: ‘Woodbine Healtheare Center Ms. Denise M. Anderson
Atm: Chief Executive Officer Attormey at Law
2900 Kendallwood Parkway 305 The Stilwell, 104 W, Ninth

Gladstong, MO 64119 Kansas City, MO 64103

MYI1A W, Truman Blvd,

.0, lox §52%
Jeffecsan Cly, MO
Fhonax £73751-3323
FAXL 3737741 -2503

CiY05 Ofive

Suahe 320
Si. Lauly, MO 63101
Phony: J14/3ED.7300
FAX: 314/30-7232

[LItERYFe]

04 Femrolylvania Avy,

Suhlie {50

Kansux Cliy, MO 64111

Fhowe 816/889-2100
FA Xy A16/ON9-5107

TDR: 31A/340-7550
Ralay Missouri: E-500-733-2468 (Voler) 1-800.735-296E (TDD)

FAX: 573/472-.

EXHIBIT
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